OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

7.26 P.M. 20TH FEBRUARY 2019

PRESENT:-

Councillors Nigel Goodrich (Chairman), June Ashworth, Alan Biddulph, Rob Devey, Tim Hamilton-Cox (Substitute for Caroline Jackson), John Reynolds and David Whitaker and Phillippa Williamson (Substitute for Roger Mace)

Apologies for Absence:-

Councillors Caroline Jackson and Roger Mace

Also in Attendance:-

Councillors Dave Brookes, Janice Hanson and Jean Parr

Officers in attendance:-

Kieran Keane Assistant Chief Executive

Jason Syers Director for Economic Growth and Regeneration

Daniel Bates Director of Corporate Services

David Brown Interim Head of Legal and Democratic Services

and Monitoring Officer

Richard Crompton Interim Regeneration Manager
Stephen Metcalfe Principal Democratic Support Officer

Jenny Kay Civic & Ceremonial Democratic Support Officer

21 MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting held on 9th January 2019 were signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

22 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

Resolved:-

That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business, on the grounds that it could involve the possible disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of that Act.

23 REVIEW OF GRANT USE FOR CITY CENTRE ARTS PROVISION FOR YEAR 2017/18/19

The Chairman welcomed Members of the Budget and Performance Panel and other Councillors who had been invited to the meeting.

The Director of Economic Growth and Regeneration presented a report to the Committee detailing the current grant use for city centre arts provision.

It was reported that the City Council had supported arts and culture in the district in various ways in recent years playing a strong role in terms of support, development, investment, promotion and delivery. As part of this, investments had been made to support the activities of a number of arts organisations and, until more recently, small arts grants.

It was noted that the City Council's currently invested in The Dukes, Litfest, More Music, and Ludus Dance. Full Council had also approved a policy to assist the Musicians' Cooperative in Lancaster.

The Committee was advised that the role of the Section 151 Officer was to ensure that the funding the City Council provided was spent on arts provision and could not be used for any other purpose. Further, the Section 151 Officer needed to be satisfied that the organisations were viable for that period. It was reported that monitoring was undertaken on a quarterly basis.

Members discussed the current provision and the Service Level Agreements that were in place with the organisations and how these were reviewed.

Resolved:-

That the Budget and Performance Panel be recommended:

- To consider a strategic review of arts spend and Service Level Agreements for the management and governance of grants to support arts provision in the district. Documentation to be provided to include the accounts of organisations when available.
- To receive and consider the end of year activity report forms on at least an annual basis.

Note: At this point the Press and Public were re-admitted to the meeting.

24 ECONOMIC GROWTH PLAN

Members were given a presentation which provided an overview of the City Council's proposed Economic Growth Plan which would guide the district strategically for the next 10 years.

It was reported that the district was performing well in comparison to the rest of Lancashire with unemployment significantly reduced, an improved highway network and growth in higher education, digital tourism and visitor economy sectors. Expected key growth sectors were Eden (North), Bailrigg Garden Village and the Canal Quarter which were coupled with the City Council's ambitions to invest locally.

The importance of local wealth building was emphasised and it was recognised that the City Council was now catching up with other local authorities in terms of self-promotion of the district. The geographical strategic advantage of the Lancaster district was noted in terms of our links to ports to the Isle of Man, Northern Ireland and the Republic of Ireland.

Members were informed that the Economic Growth Plan would highlight measurable outputs and outcomes such as growth in business revenues, increased visitor spend, creation and safeguarding of jobs and the improvement of skills and prospects for local people.

The Committee discussed the importance of the City Council taking a strategic view of the economic growth of the district.

Resolved:-

That the presentation be noted.

25 UPDATE ON THE COUNCIL'S LOCAL PLAN

The Director for Economic Growth and Regeneration gave the Committee an update on the City Council's Local Plan. It was reported that the date for the Public Enquiry had been set and would commence in April 2019.

Members queried the length of time the Enquiry would take as community groups were expressing frustration as to the length of time it was taking.

Resolved :-

That the update be noted.

26 PROPERTY PORTFOLIO INFORMAL TASK GROUP

Members considered the scoping document that had been produced for the Property Portfolio Informal Task Group and unanimously agreed to set up the Informal Task Group.

Resolved:-

That the Property Portfolio Informal Task Group be established.

27 EDEN (NORTH) INFORMAL TASK GROUP

Members considered the scoping document that had been produced for the Eden (North) Informal Task Group and unanimously agreed to set up the Informal Task Group.

Resolved:-

That the Eden (North) Informal Task Group be established.

28 UPDATES ON THE EDEN (NORTH) PROJECT

There were no updates to report.

29 WORK PROGRAMME REPORT

There were no updates to report.

Chairman

(The meeting ended at 8.50 p.m.)

Any queries regarding these Minutes, please contact Jenny Kay, Democratic Services - telephone (01524) 582065 or email jkay@lancaster.gov.uk